
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Regular Meeting AGENDA north BRANCH 
February 13, 2013 6:30 PM 1170 The Alameda 
  

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  (510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

The Board of Library Trustees may act on any item on this agenda. 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 

B. Public Comments (6:30 – 7:00 PM) 
(Proposed 30-minute time limit, with speakers allowed 3 minutes each) 

C. Report from library employees and unions, discussion of staff issues 
Comments / responses to reports and issues addressed in packet. 

D. Report from Board of Library Trustees  

II. DISCUSSION CALENDAR 

A. Results of Community Survey on Library Hours – Douglas Smith and Sarah Dentan - TBD 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the 
Consent Calendar. All items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 

A. Approve minutes of January 9, 2013 Regular Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the January 9, 2013 regular meeting of the Board of 
Library Trustees. 

B. Contract: One Work Place L. Ferrari, LLC 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to execute a 
contract with One Work Place for the purchase of furniture, fixtures and equipment and services 
including installation, shipping and delivery for the branch library bond project at South Branch 
library for a contract amount not to exceed $130,000. 

C. Accept grant and gifts funds in support of Berkeley Public Library programs. 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the acceptance of gift funds from the Berkeley Public 
Library Foundation constituting payment toward the Foundation’s branch library capital campaign pledge 
and accept other miscellaneous gifts, and accept and appropriate an LSTA federal pass-through grant 
award from the California State Library for organizing and hosting the Berkeley Comics Arts Festival. 

D. 2013 All Staff Meeting Schedule – Corrected 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to open the 
Central Library and all branches one hour late on January 31, March 29, May 31 and August 
30, 2013 in order to accommodate the all-staff meetings and allow adequate time for Library 
staff to open the libraries. 

E. Revised Library Records Retention Schedule 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution approving the Revised Records Retention Schedule for the 
Library. 

F. FY13 – 1ST-Half Update and AAO2 Budget Amendment  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution amending the operational FY 2013 Revised Budgets for 
appropriation of grant and gifts funding as described herein for a total revised expenditure 
budget of $31,178,996. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY   BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA  
February 13, 2013  Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704  (510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

IV. ACTION CALENDAR 

A. Library Green Cleaning Policy  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution instituting a green cleaning policy for custodial 
maintenance at all library facilities. 

V. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Update on the Branch Bond Program  
Discussion of staff report on status of implementation of the Measure FF branch improvement 
program, to include update on Request for Proposals, schedule, and budget. 

B. February 2013 Monthly Report from Library Director  
i. Library Development 
ii. Professional Activities 

iii. Programs, Services and Collections 
iv. Personnel 

C. Public Employee Performance Evaluation Update  

D. Library events: Calendar of events and press releases for various Library programs are posted 
at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

VI. AGENDA BUILDING 

The next meeting will be a Regular Meeting held at 6:30 PM on Wednesday, March 13, 2013 at the North Branch 
Library, 1170 The Alameda, Berkeley. 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
Written materials may be viewed in advance of the meeting at the Central Library Reference Desk (2090 Kittredge Street), or any of the 
branches, during regular library hours. 

Wheelchair accessible. To request a sign language interpreter, real-time captioning, materials in large 
print or Braille, or other accommodations for this event, please call (510) 981-6107 (voice) or (510) 548-
1240 (TTY); at least three working days will help ensure availability. 

Please refrain from wearing scented products to public programs. 

I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley was posted in the display 
cases located at 2134 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way and in front of the Central Public Library at 2090 Kittredge Street, as well as on the 
Berkeley Public Library’s website on February 7, 2013. 

 
 
 //s// ____________________________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

For further information, please call (510) 981-6195. 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic records, 
which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are 
not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the public record. If 
you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal 
Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee. If you do not want your contact information 
included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant 
board, commission or committee for further information. 
 

1. Carol Denney – New Rules 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/


MINUTES 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
Wednesday, January 9, 2013, 6:30 P.M. 

 
NORTH BRANCH LIBRARY – 1170 THE ALAMEDA 

 
Board of Library Trustees: 

Chair Winston Burton Darryl Moore 
Vice Chair Abigail Franklin Julie Holcomb 
 Jim Novosel 

 
I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A copy of the agenda packet and a digital recording of the meeting is accessible 
at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/bolt/bolt.php 

A. Call to Order: 6:35 P.M. 

Present: Trustees Burton, Franklin, Holcomb, Moore and Novosel. 

Absent:  None. 

Also Present: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services; Douglas Smith, Deputy Director; Eve 
Franklin, Administrative Secretary. 

Megan McArdle, Collection Development Manager 

B. Public Comments:  None. 

C. Report from library employees and unions, discussion of staff issues:  None. 

D. Report from Board of Library Trustees:   

1. Trustee Moore – I am looking forward to attending the ALA Conference in Seattle at the end of the 
month. 

II. PRESENTATIONS CALENDAR 

A. Collection Development  

Megan McArdle provided an update on Collection Development  (Attachment 1). Board Discussion 
followed. 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Action: M/S/C (Trustee Franklin / Trustee Holcomb to adopt Resolution# R13-001 to adopt the Consent 
Calendar as presented. 
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees Burton, Franklin, Holcomb, Moore and Novosel.  Noes: None.  Absent:None. 
Abstentions: None. 

III Consent Calendar, Item A 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/bolt/bolt.php


Page 2 01/09/2013 MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

A. Approve minutes of December 19, 2012 Regular Meeting 

From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the December 19, 2012 regular meeting of the Board of 
Library Trustees. 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
Action: Adopted Resolution# R13-002 to approve minutes as presented. 

IV. ACTION CALENDAR 

Closed Session Item A was moved to Action Calendar. 

A. January 2013 Monthly Report from Library Director  

From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Appoint Trustee Franklin and Trustee Holcomb to subcommittee to prepare annual 
performance appraisal for Donna Corbeil as the Director of Library Services 
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
Action: M/S/C (Trustee Moore / Trustee Novosel to adopt Resolution# R13-003. 
Vote:  Ayes: Trustees Burton, Franklin, Holcomb, Moore and Novosel.  Noes: None.  Absent: None. 
Abstentions: None. 

V. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. January 2013 Monthly Report from Library Director  

From: Director of Library Services  
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Received. 

B. West Landscaping Update 

Handouts provided (Attachment 2) 

From: Director of Library Services  
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: Received. 

C. Library events 

From: Director of Library Services  
Contact: Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
Action: None. 

VI. AGENDA BUILDING 

The next meeting will be a Regular Meeting held at 6:30 PM on Wednesday, February 13, 2013 at the North 
Branch Library, 1170 The Alameda, Berkeley.  



Page 3 01/09/2013 MINUTES BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

VII. CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Session Item A was moved to the Action Calendar. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned at 7:54 p.m.  

COMMUNICATIONS: None. 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS:  

1. Collection Development Update 
2. West Branch Landscape  

 





Attachment 1

1

Buying and managing our Library Collections

Budget Report Highlights
How we spend the Materials Budget

How we decide where to allocate $$

Fun with statistics!

Pie Charts!!

Line Graphs!!

Bar Graphs!!



Attachment 1

2

Materials Budget 
 FY 08 $1,071,112

 FY 09 $891,121

 FY 10 $823,068

 FY 11 $811,134

 FY 12 $916,000

 FY 13 $916,000 (Adjusted in 10/12 to $996,000)

Still only 6.38% of Operating Budget

National Averages from Library Journal:

Materials as Percentage of Operating Budget: 11‐12%

Average for Libraries serving populations 100K‐499K = $1,177,000

Central
68%

Claremont
9%

North
9%

South
6%

West
8%

Spending by location (print only)  FY12



Attachment 1

3

BOOKS
61%

PERIODICALS
7%

AV
13%

ELECTRONIC
19%

Spending by Format FY12

Adult 
59%

Teen 
2%

Childrens
16%

All Ages
23%

Spending by Age Level FY12 All Ages = 
•Databases
•Ebooks
•Literacy
•Processing Charges



Attachment 1

4

Spending by Vendor FY12
Vendor Name Spent FY12 What we buy

Baker & Taylor $279,712.85 Books; Mostly adult/teen

BWI $102,451.53 Books; Mostly Childrens

Midwest Tapes $99,440.17 AV; Adult/Children split

Overdrive $67,010.76 Ebooks; 80% adult, 20% children

EBSCO $52,515.09 Magazines, mostly adult

Amazon $29,053.83 Books; Adult/Children split

Gale $25,662.35 Books/Ebooks/Databases

Califa $14,230.04 Databases

Books on Tape $13,881.95 Audiobooks; Adult/Children split

BALIS $12,839.00 Databases

Oxford $12,830.00 Books/Ebooks/Databases

All other vendors $178,638.65

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $888,266.22

How do we decide how to spend?
 Demographics

 Circulation Statistics

 Costs of Materials

 Percentage of Budget Spent in Previous FY

 Projected Trends



Attachment 1

5

Demographics
 Who lives where?

 Age, Race, Size of Household, Own vs. Rent

 2010 Census data by zip or even census tract

 Who uses the library?

 New statistical module will allow us to do more reports 
based on patron’s zipcode

Circulation Statistics



Attachment 1

6

Adult
63%

Teen 
3%

Childrens
34%

Checkouts by 
Age Level

BOOKS
59%

PERIODICALS
2%

AV
38%

ELECTRONIC
1%

Checkouts by 
Format



Attachment 1

7

Central
73%

Claremont
3%

North
5%

South
7%

West
12%

Checkouts by 
Location

Checkouts by Subject – FY12

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

Adult

Teen

Children



Attachment 1

8

Circulation Trends

0

200000

400000

600000

800000

1000000

1200000

1400000

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12

Books TOTAL

DVDs TOTAL

Music CDs TOTAL

Audiobooks CD TOTAL

Magazines TOTAL

VHS TOTAL

Audiobook Cassette

NOTE:
Claremont closed 3/11‐5/12 
North closed 3/11‐4/12
West Closed 3/12
South Closed 5/12

Circulation : Spending

Adult
63%

Teen 
3%

Childrens
34%

Circ by Age Level

Adult 
Expenditures

59%

Teen 
Expenditures

2%

Childrens 
Expenditures

16%

All Ages
23%

Spending by Age Level



Attachment 1

9

BOOKS
61%

PERIODICALS
7%

AV
13%

ELECTRONIC
19%

Spending by Format

BOOKS
59%

PERIODICALS
2%

AV
38%

ELECTRONIC
1%

Checkouts by Format

Circulation : Spending

Trends
 Ebooks vs Print

 Databases  vs Print Reference

 DVD vs Blue Ray

 Music Streaming

 Video Streaming

 Floating Collections

 Business Models made for consumers, not libraries

 Advocacy for libraries

 Tech Literacy / Tech Support





1

Facing complex from university

• Corner where CMR starts • Tree @ far right corner of CMR

      Attachment 2



2

• Planter @ literacy – facing hotel • Facing parking lot ‐ planter @ literacy office

• Facing complex, tree  at corner of CMR

      Attachment 2



3

• Facing parking lot, transition point for fencing

• Corner hotel and apartment complex • Facing parking lot

      Attachment 2





 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 February 13, 2013 
  
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: CONTRACT: ONE WORKPLACE L. FERRARI, LLC 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to execute an agreement and any 
amendments with One Workplace L. Ferrari, LLC for the procurement of furniture and associated 
delivery, temporary storage, and installation services for the Measure FF renovated South Branch library 
for the period from February 14, 2013 through December 30, 2013 in an amount not to exceed 
$130,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The total cost of the contract is valued at $130,000.  This expenditure is included in the Foundation FF&E 
Fund (307) FY 2013 Budget and will be expensed through budget code 307-9301-450.##-##  10LB25.  
The Foundation FF&E Fund is a gift supported fund with proceeds sourced from the Berkeley Public 
Library Foundation’s $2.5M Neighborhood Libraries Campaign. 

BACKGROUND 

The Branch Improvement Program, Measure FF is the funding source for improvements to the branch 
libraries, including project management, design and construction. The South branch architectural design 
team, Field Paoli Architects has interior design services as part of its contract for services. Each branch 
location has unique needs, regarding office landscape furniture layout and the design of public areas. All 
furnishings for the South Branch have been selected to enhance the contemporary design of the new 
facility and to complete the design and fulfill the project’s intent. The South Branch will have a new 
community room with state-of-the art AV equipment and design flexibility to allow a variety of 
programs; consequently, furniture that is flexible and durable to meet a variety of needs is required. 
Reading areas will be furnished with comfortable lounge-style chairs, and the dedicated teen space will 
feature new teen friendly chairs and tables. The children’s area will be complemented with furnishings 
that are playful, durable and appropriate for the age level in size and functionality. The selected 
furnishings are an essential component to the building’s efficient and effective operations upon re-
opening and will function to ensure that the new library facility is maximized for comfort, flexibility and 
sustainability while creating welcoming places.   

The Berkeley Public Library Foundation has demonstrated a consistent and enduring commitment of 
support for the Library, particularly in raising capital funds to fund facility improvements. Today the 
Foundation is leading a $2.5M capital campaign fund drive entitled the Neighborhood Libraries 

III Consent, Item B 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Contract: One Workplace L. Ferrari, LLC Page 2 

 
Campaign targeting crucial interior elements that are prohibited from access to Measure FF bond 
proceeds, which by law is restricted to “the acquisition or improvement of real property.”  Among the 
improvements to be paid for by the capital campaign are computers, furniture, lamps, bookshelves, and 
magazine racks. 

At a regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees held on December 9, 2009, the Board unanimously 
adopted BOLT Resolution No.: 10-028 accepting the March 2010 Foundation’s Board of Directors’ 
resolution to undertake a major capital campaign to fund furniture, fixtures, equipment and other 
expenses associated with the renovation or new construction of the four Berkeley Public Library 
Branches. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

With the South Branch Library in the construction phase and it’s completion anticipated in April /May 
2013 the Library on December 17, 2012 released Specification No. 13-10717 a request for proposal for 
branch library office and public furniture procurement and installation services specifically addressed to 
the South Branch Library.  On January 24, written proposals were due to the City’s Purchasing 
Department and seven bids were accepted.  Immediately thereafter, the Library assembled a panel of 
three staff members to review and evaluate the responses.  Of this analysis, consideration was given to 
product and service pricing, references and performance of similar scoped project experience, the 
understanding of the enunciated scope and completeness of the proposal, as well as the workload and 
cost impacts in regards to the degree of Library oversight, culminating in a recommendation to split the 
award among three vendors as follows: Contract Office Group - Haworth not to exceed $27,000, Hogue 
not to exceed $35,000, and One Workplace L. Ferrrari. 
 
The value of the award recommended to One Workplace L. Ferrrari at $430,000 exceeds the spending 
limit of $100,000 for the purchase of goods allowed to the Director of Library Services as stated in the 
Library’s Purchasing Manual.  It is specifically this portion of the award that the Board is asked to 
approve by resolution – the award to COG - Haworth and Hogue is within the Director’s spending 
authority, and consequently, contracting with those two vendors does not require Board approval.  
Additional vendors will be engaged to provide unique products and to submit bids on other required 
furnishings below the limit as the work of outfitting the branch continues. One Workplace presented the 
most complete and comprehensive of those received encompassing a greater amount of the vendors 
and products specified.  
 
The Library requests the Board’s considered consent due to the imminent Spring 2013 reopening of the 
South Branch Library.  Much of the furniture selected for the branch entail extended ordering lead times 
of 12 to 16 weeks necessitating prompt action by Library Administration personnel to process and 
execute a contract, reconfirm furniture selections with the architect, processing time for the vendor to 
complete order placements, and lead time for the Library to initiate coordination of delivery and 
installation schedules with One Workplace L. Ferrrari and the branch library’s construction contractor, as 
well as all other contracted service providers participating in move-in activities. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Seven bids were received in response to a request for proposal. One Work Place presented the most 
complete and comprehensive of those received encompassing a greater amount of specified products 
among the bidding vendors. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Contract: One Workplace L. Ferrari, LLC Page 3 

 
No alternative actions were considered due to the coordinative complexity required of the purchase 
presented herein and the limited administrative staffing resources within the Library. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
 





 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: R13-0XX 

AUTHORIZE THE DIRECTOR OF LIBRARY SERVICES TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS WITH 
ONE WORKPLACE L. FERRARI, LLC FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF FURNITURE AND ASSOCIATED DELIVERY, 
TEMPORARY STORAGE, AND INSTALLATION SERVICES FOR THE MEASURE FF FUNDED NEW SOUTH BRANCH 
LIBRARY FOR THE PERIOD FROM FEBRUARY 14, 2013 THROUGH DECEMBER 30, 2013 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $130,000.  

WHEREAS, the respective design team, Field Paoli Architects have interior design services as part of their contract 
for services, such that the South Branch location’s unique needs, regarding office space layout and the design of 
public areas shall be considered and result in the selection of recommended furnishings appropriate to the space 
and best meeting functional needs; and 

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Public Library Foundation is leading capital campaign fund drive entitled the 
Neighborhood Libraries Campaign targeting crucial interior elements that are prohibited from access to Measure 
FF bond proceeds, which by law is restricted to “the acquisition or improvement of real property”; and 

WHEREAS, the South Branch library is in the construction phase and its completion is anticipated in early Spring 
2013; and 

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2012 The Library released Specification No. 13-10717, a request for proposal for 
branch library public and office furniture procurement and installation services specifically addressed to the 
South Branch library; and 

WHEREAS, Specification No. 13-10717 yielded 7 responses of which three vendors have been selected by a panel 
of three staff members after careful consideration of product and service pricing, references and performance of 
similar scoped project experience, understanding of the enunciated scope and completeness of the proposal, as 
well as the workload and cost impacts in regards to the degree of Library oversight; and 

WHEREAS, the value of the award recommended to One Workplace L. Ferrrari, LLC at $130,000 exceeds the 
spending limit of $100,000 for the purchase of goods allowed to the Director of Library Services; and 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the long lead times involved for procurement of furniture and furniture systems, 
and the myriad activities requiring coordination to reopen the South Branch library immediate action is 
warranted. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to authorize the 
Director of Library Services to execute an agreement and any amendments with One Workplace L. Ferrari, LLC for 
the procurement of furniture and associated delivery, temporary storage, and installation services for the 
Measure FF funded new South Branch library for the period from February 14, 2013 through December 30, 2013 
in an amount not to exceed $130,000. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on February 13, 2013 
by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:   
ABSTENTIONS:   
 
  _______________________________________________  
 Winston Burton, Chairperson 
 
  _______________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary of the Board of Library Trustees 

Attachment 1 





 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 February 13, 2013 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 
SUBJECT: ACCEPT AND APPROPRIATE GRANT AND GIFTS FUNDS IN SUPPORT OF BERKELEY PUBLIC 

LIBRARY PROGRAMS 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution authorizing the acceptance of gift funds from the Berkeley Public Library Foundation 
constituting payment toward the Foundation’s branch library capital campaign pledge and accept other 
miscellaneous gifts, and accept and appropriate an LSTA federal pass-through grant award from the California 
State Library for organizing and hosting the Berkeley Comics Arts Festival. 
 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 

The acceptance of this grant and gifts will have no negative impact on the Library budget. Gift funds will 
be allocated to cover cost of contracts and purchasing associated with the procurement of equipment, 
furniture, and other activities or items needed to complete the branch renovation projects, or as 
otherwise noted in the table below. The grant award will be used to fund the Berkeley Comics Arts 
Festival. 

Type Source Amount Program 
Gift BPL Foundation $200,000 Branch Measure FF, funds for FF&E related expenses 
Gift Friends of the BPL $38,028 Installment #1 of $88,327 FY 2013 Commitment 
Gift Organization (1 count - FDN Pass-thru) $3,500 for Berkeley READS 
Gift Individuals (2 count) $275 for Library Collections 
Gift Individuals (1 count) $100 for Berkeley READS 
Gift Business (2 count) $200 for Berkeley READS 
Grant CA State Library (LSTA) $5,000 For Berkeley Comics Arts Festival 
 

BACKGROUND 

The Berkeley Public Library Foundation has demonstrated a strong history of support for the Library, 
particularly raising capital funds to support facility improvements.  With the passage of Measure FF, the 
Foundation kicked off a major fund raising campaign in support of the four branch libraries.  At the 
December 9, 2009, regular meeting, the board adopted Resolution No. R09-120 recognizing the 
establishment of the Foundation’s Branch Library Capital Campaign for purchasing of furnishings, 

III Consent, Item C 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Gift Fund Acceptance  Page 2 

 
fixtures, equipment, and materials associated with the Branch Library Improvement Program and 
authorized a donor recognition plan. 

At the April 14, 2010 BOLT meeting, Resolution No. 10-028 was approved, accepting the Berkeley Public 
Library Foundation Board of Directors’ resolution to undertake a major multi-year capital campaign for 
the Measure FF bond program to fund the furniture, fixtures, equipment, and other expenses associated 
with the Branch Library Improvement Program. As of January 2013 – this referenced $200,000 gift 
pledge excluded – the Foundation has made payments totaling $1,300,000 for FF&E purposes to Fund 
307. 

The Library makes an active effort to locate grant program funding that is consistent with the Library’s 
mission and objectives to support the “cultural, informational, recreational, and educational needs” of 
the Berkeley community. The Children’s and Teen collections have experienced consistent and heavy 
demand for graphic novels, which circulate at a significantly higher rate than that of the respective 
fiction collections. In response, staff has explored ways to exploit this popularity to further foster 
literacy skills among a diverse readership population that includes ESL students, reluctant “traditional 
book form” readers, and those with learning impediments and special needs. Staff was able to locate 
and apply for a fiscal year 2013 federally funded (LSTA) California State Library pass-through grant, 
presenting a proposal for a community events-based graphics novel festival to be offered with the 
support of local businesses and organizations, and authors.  

The Board of Library Trustees has in the past managed the acceptance and appropriation of all grants, 
and gifts, including substantial gifts, donations, and monetary awards designated for use by the Library.  
These practices are part of the regular budget management process, including quarterly budget reports, 
the annual budget appropriation, and are consistent with the Library’s grants and gifts policy and the 
directives that the Board of Library Trustees approves the disposition of Library funds.  

 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

The Berkeley Public Library Foundation periodically extends funding to the Library realized through the 
capital campaign; the current gift pledge of $200,000 constitutes such funding and is intended to 
contribute to the Measure FF renovations.  

This recommendation to accept the pledge of $200,000 in gift funds is consistent with passage of a 
resolution by the City Council on September 20, 2011 accepting the recommendation of the Board of 
Library Trustees’ Resolution No. 11-051, delegating to the board the authority to accept any non-duly 
restrictive gift of funds, goods, or services to the Library up to $200,000 or gifts of any amount 
assignable to the Berkeley Public Library Foundation FF&E Capital Campaign Fund, and the annual 
reporting to the City Council of any gift in excess of $1,000. 

Other monetary gifts include a $38,028 first installment payment by the Friends of the Library’s to their 
FY 2013 commitment of $88,327 to fund a variety of Library programs, a gift of $3,500 from the 
Raymond Family Foundation for Berkeley READS, and individual and corporate donations of $300 to 
Berkeley READS and $275 to library collections.  

The California State Library has notified the Library that its grant application for developing and hosting 
a series of events focused around six weeks in April and May to be tentatively designated as the 
Berkeley Comics Arts Festival has been awarded $5,000 in funding support. Staff has already completed 
much of the preliminary work while developing the grant request and now with this funding support 
looks forward to further working with event partners to make this event reality. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Gift Fund Acceptance  Page 3 

 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

By accepting and appropriating the grant and gift funds noted herein, the Library will be able to honor 
the intent and wishes of the grantor/donor and fulfill identified community needs.  Furthermore, the 
City Council’s delegation of authority to the Board of Library Trustees ensures that public noticing of 
gifts occurs on a regular basis, and annual reporting will ensure that the Council remains well-informed 
regarding gifts to the Library. 

 
Attachments 
1. Resolution 
 



 



   

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: R13-___ 

ACCEPT AND APPROPRIATE GRANT AND GIFT FUNDS IN  
SUPPORT OF BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY PROGRAMS 

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Public Library regularly receives gifts from two support organizations, the 
Berkeley Public Library Foundation and the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, as well as many 
individuals and groups; and 

WHEREAS, at the regular BOLT meeting of April 14, 2010, by a vote of five ayes and no nays, Resolution 
10-028 was approved accepting the Foundation’s commitment to raise funds associated with the branch 
library bond projects (Measure FF) for furniture, fixtures, and equipment; and 

WHEREAS, the Foundation has donated to date a total of $1,300,000 toward the Branch Library FF&E 
Campaign; and 

WHEREAS, gift funds received from the Foundation for the purpose of the Branch Library FF&E 
Campaign, and once accepted by the board will be allocated towards the procurement of furniture, 
computers, equipment, and services from vendors as appropriate to the outfitting of the renovated 
branch libraries, and in accordance with the Library’s purchasing policy; and  

WHEREAS, following passage of the Open Government Ordinance by the City Council, the City Council by 
passage of Resolution No. 65,444-N.S. delegated to the Library Board of Trustees the authority to accept 
any gifts of funds, goods, or services made to the Library up to $200,000 that do not include unduly 
restrictive conditions on their use, and all gifts from the Library Foundation constituting payments 
toward the Foundation’s Branch Library FF&E Campaign; and 

WHEREAS, the Library makes an active effort to locate grant program funding that is consistent with the 
Library’s mission and objectives to support the “cultural, informational, recreational, and educational 
needs” of the Berkeley community; and 

WHEREAS, Children’s and Teen staff have explored ways to exploit the popularity of graphic novels to 
further foster literacy skills among a diverse readership population that includes ESL students, reluctant 
“traditional book form” readers, and those with learning impediments and special needs; and 

WHEREAS, the California State Library has notified the Library that its grant application for developing 
and hosting a series of graphic novel events to be tentatively designated as the Berkeley Comics Arts 
Festival has been awarded $5,000 in funding support; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley hereby 
authorizes the acceptance of $200,000 from the Berkeley Public Library Foundation and the allocation of 
these funds to procure needed furniture, fixtures, and equipment for the branch library Measure FF 
projects; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley hereby authorizes 
the acceptance of $38,028 from the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library as the first installment 
payment of their FY 2013 commitment, a gift of $3,500 from the Raymond Family Foundation for 
Berkeley READS, and individual and corporate donations of $300 to Berkeley READS and $275 to library 
collections; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley hereby authorizes 
the acceptance and appropriation of $5,000 from the California State Library LSTA federal grant pass-
through program for developing and hosting a series of graphic novel events to be tentatively 
designated as the Berkeley Comics Arts Festival.  

Attachment 1 



Resolution No.: R11-051  Page 2 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on February 
13, 2013 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:   
ABSTENTIONS:   
  
  __________________________________________________  
 Winston Burton, Chairperson 
  
  __________________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 



  

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: R13-___ 

APPROVAL FOR REVISED 2013 ALL STAFF MEETING SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, it has been the practice for the Director of Library Services to convene quarterly meetings of 
all Library staff, including branch staffs, on the fifth Friday of months which have five Fridays from 8:30 
a.m. to 10 a.m.; and 

WHEREAS, these meetings allow staff to speak to each other about special projects, services and other 
relevant issues, and permit the Director and managers the opportunity to hand out staff awards, 
announce updates, and communicate pertinent information directly to all personnel; and 

WHEREAS, prior to 2008, all-staff meetings have been held from 8:30-9:30 am prior to the Library 
opening, allowing 30 minutes for preparation to open the branches and Central Library at 10:00am; and 

WHEREAS, by delaying the Library’s opening by one hour on these four mornings, continued staff 
participation in the meetings is anticipated, and in-depth topics will continue to be covered with 
adequate time for discussion; and 

WHEREAS, opening an hour later on all-staff meeting days has provided effective and productive 
meetings, with adequate time for Library staff to prepare for opening. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees approved the Library’s 2013 All Staff Meeting schedule at its 
regular meeting on November 14, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, through an error, the schedule approved included January 31, 2013 incorrectly  and omitted  
March 29, 2013. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to authorize 
the Director of Library Services to open the Central Library and all branches one hour late on January 31, 
March 29, May 31 and August 30, 2013 in order to accommodate the all-staff meetings and allow 
adequate time for Library staff to open the libraries. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on February 
13, 2013 by the following vote: 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:  

ABSTENTIONS:  

  
  ____________________________________________  
 Winston Burton, Chairperson 
 
 
 
  ____________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 

III Consent Calendar, Item D 





 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 February 13, 2013 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  
SUBJECT: REVISED LIBRARY RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a resolution approving the revised Records Retention Schedule pertaining to the Library as detailed 
below.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 

 

BACKGROUND 
The Board of Library Trustees last reviewed and approved the Library’s Records Retention Schedule with 
passage of BOLT Resolution No.: 11-049 at the regular meeting of July 13, 2011. Since that date the City 
Council of the City of Berkeley on November 27, 2012 has updated the city-wide Records Retention 
Schedule – in compliance with the City’s Records Management Program – by rescindment of Resolution No. 
64,546-N.S. and adoption of Resolution No. 65,943-N.S. The Records Retention Schedule-General details 
the management and storage of administrative records applicable to all departments, boards and 
commissions, inclusive of the Library. The Records Retention Schedule is a listing of all record types 
produced or maintained by a unique delegated authority and the necessary actions regarding the 
disposition of those records; and of which, the Library adheres to such a schedule appropriate to its 
operations. On those occasions when the Library determines it to be necessary to revise items included in 
the Library’s Records Retention Schedule, those requests are forwarded to the City for review and approval 
prior to presentation for adoption by the board. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
The Library currently follows the record retention policy for financial and general records as set forth by the 
Records Management Program of the Office of the City Clerk, including the Records Management Manual 
and Records Retention Schedule.  The record management guidelines and schedule covers administrative 
records; budget documents; citizen complaints; contracts and leases; correspondence and memos 
regarding policies, programs and services; financial reports; grant related documents; publications and 
reports; manuals; personnel records; and organizational charts. Included in the general schedule are the 
retention requirements for city-wide boards and commissions, including agendas, resolutions, minutes, 
attendance records and tapes.  

III Consent Calendar, Item E  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Library Records Retention Schedule Page 2 

 
 
The City Council adopted Records Retention Schedule (Council consent calendar item 07, Retention 
Schedule, November 27, 2012) consists of the Records Retention Schedule-General – Exhibit A (Attachment 
2) and Record Retention Schedule applicable to specific departments – Exhibit B  (Attachment 3). The items 
in the Records Retention Schedule-General, including section GRS200 which applies to boards and 
commissions, are relevant to the Library. The Library follows, and will continue to follow, with board 
approval the records retention policies and procedures for general and financial records as approved by the 
city council during their November 27, 2012 regular meeting and as administered by the Office of the City 
Clerk. 

 

FUTURE ACTION 
None. 

 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. City of Berkeley, Records Retention Schedule – General (Rev 10/2012) 
3. City of Berkeley, City Clerk Department, Records Retention Schedules: Policy, Objectives, & 

Responsibilities (October 2012) 
4. Library Records Retention Schedule (Revised) 
 



   

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: 13-0XX 
 

APPROVAL OF THE REVISED RECORDS SCHEDULE ITEMS PERTAINING TO THE LIBRARY  
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley’s Records Retention Schedule-General details the management and 
storage of administrative records applicable to all departments, and boards and commissions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley’s Records Retention Schedule is a listing of all records produced or 
maintained by a unique delegated authority and the necessary actions regarding the disposition of those 
records and to which the Library adheres to such a schedule appropriate to its operations; and 
 
WHEREAS, when the Library determines it to be necessary to revise items included in the Library’s 
Records Retention Schedule those requests are forwarded to the City for review and approval prior to 
presentation for adoption by the board; and 
 
WHEREAS, Library staff has reviewed the adopted schedule and compiled a list of items specific to the 
Library for submission to the Office of the City Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Library abides by the Records Retention Schedules: Policy, Objectives and Responsibilities 
approved by the City Council and as administered by the Office of the City Clerk; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to approve 
the revised Records Retention Schedule adopted by the City Council of the City of Berkeley on 
November 27, 2012 for items pertaining to the Library; and the Library Records Retention Schedule as 
presented. 
  
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on February 
13, 2013 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
 
              
      Winston Burton, Chairperson 
 
 
    
              
      Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
      Serving as Secretary of the Board of Library Trustees 
 
 

 

Attachment 1 



 
 
 



Attachment 2



Attachment 2



Attachment 2



Attachment 2



Attachment 2



Attachment 2



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3



Attachment 3





Berkeley Public Library 
Records Retention Schedule 

 
 

Shaded items are new 

2013_02_13_Record Retention_Att_4.docx  (Revised 1/2013) 
 Page 1  

RS/ITEM 
NO. 

RECORD SERIES TITLE/SUBTITLE AND DESCRIPTION 
(IF APPLICABLE) 

RETAIN 
IN 

OFFICE STORAGE DESTROY 
STATUTORY 
REFERENCE 

LIBR101 Borrower Registration Records 
Records documenting the 
registration of authorized borrowers 

AE+2 - US Dept. Policy 

LIBR102 Cash Receipts 
Daily deposit of monies from Library 

2 5 7 Dept. Policy 

LIBR103 Circulation Records 
Records documenting the circulation 
of library materials to individual 
borrowers 

US - US Dept. Policy 

LIBR104 Circulation Statistical Reports 
Refers to California state Library 
annual public library survey 

PERM - PERM Dept. Policy 

LIBR105 Library Catalog US - US Dept. Policy 
LIBR106 Overdue Records 

Library fines information for 
accounts unsettled over $50 

5 - 5 Dept. Policy 

LIBR107 Overdue Records 
Library fines information for 
accounts unsettled under $50 

3 - 3 Dept. Policy 

LIBR108 Employee Personnel Files 
Includes personnel 
Action/Information forms used to 
create / change information in the 
personnel records of individual 
employees regarding hiring, 
termination, transfer, performance 
evaluations, pay grade, position/job 
title, leaves of absence, name 
changes and similar actions. 

AT+5 - AT+5 GC 34090 
GC6250, 

Dept. Policy 
[seeHR704- 

library retains 
its own 

personnel 
records] 

LIBR109 Capital Improvements – Project 
Files 
Library construction projects, etc. 

CL+2 - PERM Dept. Policy 

Attachment 4  



Berkeley Public Library 
Records Retention Schedule 

 
 

Shaded items are new 

2013_02_13_Record Retention_Att_4.docx  (Revised 1/2013) 
 Page 2  

RS/ITEM 
NO. 

RECORD SERIES TITLE/SUBTITLE AND DESCRIPTION 
(IF APPLICABLE) 

RETAIN 
IN 

OFFICE STORAGE DESTROY 
STATUTORY 
REFERENCE 

LIBR110 EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECORD 
“Employee Cardex File” - 
Employment history summary for 
each employee. Contains: name; date 
of birth; social security number; 
positions held, with dates of hire, 
promotion, transfer, or demotion; 
dates of leaves of absence or 
suspension that affect computation 
of length of service; wage or salary 
rate for each position held, including 
step or merit increases within 
grades; and date of separation. 
Access is restricted to the Director of 
Human Resources, Deputy Director 
of Human Resources, Employee 
Relations Officer, and Employee 
Transaction Unit staff. Director of 
Human Resources may designate 
other staff access. 

PERM None PERM Dept. Policy 
[see HR701-

library retains 
employee 

service 
records] 

LIBR111 MEDICAL LEAVE RECORDS 
May include family leave records, 
certifications 

CL+5 25 CL+30 FMLA 1993, 29 
CFR 1910.20, 

29 CFR 
1602.30, 29 
CFR 1602.32 
[see HR702-

Library retains 
employee 

medical files] 
 
 
Retention Codes 
AE After Expiration 
AT After Termination 
CL Close/Completion  
US Until Superseded 
PERM Permanent 
 
 

Attachment 4  



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 CONSENT CALENDAR 
  February 13, 2013 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Dennis Dang, Administrative Services Manager 
  
SUBJECT: FY13 – 1ST-HALF UPDATE AND AAO2 BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt a resolution amending the operational FY 2013 Revised Budgets for appropriation of grant and 
gifts funding as described herein for a total revised expenditure budget of $31,178,996. 

INTRODUCTION  
 
Library fiscal year 2013 results at the end of the 2nd quarter by Fund are as follows: 

 Revenue Expenditures (xcl Encmb) 

Fund Actual 1Q YoY Actual 1Q YoY 

Library Tax (301) $8,010,952 2.4% $6,792,868 5.4% 

Transaction Based Reimb (302) $10,715 -71.0% $22,249 -6.5% 

Grants (304) $84,861  $890 -89.2% 

Public Library (305)   $797  

Gifts (306) $1,201 -98.1% $35,210 -1.3% 

Foundation Branch FF&E (307) $250,000 -16.7% $7,183 -80.1% 

Measure FF (308) $11,856 220.4% $3,829,926 -9.9% 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
FY 2013 is the final year of the two-year biennial budget cycle encompassing fiscal years 2012 and 2013.  
This cycle’s biennial budget was adopted on May 11, 2011 by BOLT Resolution No.: R11-038.  Ahead of 
the start of fiscal year 2013, and although not subject to the full budgeting process but more so an effort 
to update the adopted budget to better align with existing internal and external conditions, on June 13, 
2012 by BOLT Resolution No.: R12-039 the budget for fiscal year 2013 was adjusted and revised to 
incorporate the higher rate of the personal income growth rate of 3.77% versus the consumer price 
index for the immediate San Francisco Bay Area rate of 2.078%.  A second adjustment to the budget 

III Consent, Item F 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
FY13 – 1st Half Update and AAO2 Budget Amendment Page 2 

 
 
occurred during the first quarter of FY 2013 as the first of the fiscal year’s Annual Appropriations 
Ordinance actions were authorized by the board with the approval of BOLT Resolution No.: R12-057 on 
September 12, 2012. In the second quarter the board approved additional budget adjustments, 1) by 
BOLT Resolution No.: R12-063 appropriating anticipated BALIS grant funding up to $40,000 – 
subsequently awarded at $35,691, and 2) by BOLT Resolution No.: R12-076 retroactively accepting  
rolling over the FY 2012 Library Tax Fund encumbrance for the City-led VoIP system installation project. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
 
LIBRARY TAX FUND 

The Library Tax Fund includes revenue derived from the dedicated library tax, fines and fees, and 
miscellaneous revenue. At the end of the first half, revenues stood at $8,010,952 increasing YoY by 
2.4%. This favorable variance, amounting to $184,414, was primarily due to increased library tax 
receipts – the library tax rate this fiscal year is indexed to the PIG rate at 3.77% versus last fiscal year’s 
CPI peg of 2.821%. Conversely, revenue from fines and fees dropped 13.6% to $106,591 from $123,302 
during the same period last fiscal year. This fiscal year there exist a general trend seen monthly of lower 
fines and fees receipts than last year; notably, the bulk, or almost 70% of this shortfall has occurred in 
November, the month in which the Library conducted a goodwill amnesty program from the 5th through 
17th cancelling outstanding fines and fees upon patron request.  Further pressuring the revenue stream 
is the across-the-board $0.25 fines and fees that went into effect on October 1, 2012 – excludes Link + 
and Childrens always-fines-free programs (BOLT Resolution No.: 12-051 on September 12, 2012). 

Total Library Tax Fund expenditures excluding encumbrances at $6,792,868 were 5.4% above the prior 
year period, an increase of $348,969 driven by $187,554 in labor expenditures and $161,415 in non-
labor expenses.  In addition to increases in wage expenditures, YoY labor was hit by higher medical and 
pension contribution costs.  The period increase for non-labor costs was marked by higher spending for 
library materials, the purchase of the new Ford Escape vehicle, completion of the HVAC actuator 
replacement project at the Central Library, and self-check equipment for the Central Library. 

GIFTS FUND 

The Gifts Fund includes monies received through donations from the Berkeley Public Library Foundation, 
the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, the generosity of many individuals and organizations, and 
trusts such as the Alice Meyer Trust Fund, The Raymond Family Foundation, and the DuPree Family 
Foundation.  The Fund’s first half revenue at $1,201 was significantly below that of the same period last 
year due to a delay in receipt of the Friends FY 2013 gift award.  To date, gifts are made up of donations 
from 5 individual parties with a total value of $575, interest received of $469, and miscellaneous small 
change donations.  

Period expenditures at $35,211 remained essentially unchanged from the prior year’s level, with a drop 
of only $459. The Friends of the Library gift funding continued to support targeted programs throughout 
the Library with larger expenditures occurring in Children’s and Café Literario programs, and the effort 
to upgrade signage in selected areas of the Central Library.  Library material acquisitions funded through 
the Alice Meyer Trust stood at $11,402 versus a budgeted amount of $40,000, and yielded a remaining 
trust balance of $162,958. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
FY13 – 1st Half Update and AAO2 Budget Amendment Page 3 

 
 
ALL OTHER FUNDS 

All Other Funds is typically composed of funding from California State Library administered programs 
such as the Public Library Fund, the California Library Literacy Services (CLLS) program, the Library 
Services and Technology Act, and the Direct Book Loan Transaction Based Reimbursements (TBR) 
program.  Among these suspended state supported programs only the CLLS program has resumed, of 
which the Library has received an FY 2013 award of $34,170.  During this period, the Library also 
accepted grant awards of $35,691 from BALIS for development of an incident toolkit protocol, and 
$15,000 from the Alameda County Waste Management Authority for bay friendly landscaping at the 
North Branch Library.   Lastly, public-use photocopier revenue which is included as part of this Funds 
grouping to match with associated expenditures totaled $10,648.  The 71.0% decline in YoY revenue in 
the TBR Fund (see above table) is due to lagging fiscal year 2011 state support received in FY 2012. 

All Other Funds expenditures at $23,936 represented 15.7% of the revised budget (before AAO2 
acceptance of the BALIS grant). Expenses were composed of $15,429 for public-use copier rental 
expense, $6,820 due to TBR delivery services, and $1,687 in Berkeley READS literacy compensation for 
tutoring services. 

MEASURE FF FUNDS 

Two Funds service the Branch Libraries Improvement Program initiated by passage of Measure FF in 
November 2008.  The primary program Fund, the Measure FF Fund, is dedicated to the actual design, 
engineering, and construction needs for each of the four branches and is the repository for the bond 
sale proceeds (completed and undertaken in two tranches).  The second Fund, the Foundation FF&E 
Fund, is a Berkeley Public Library Foundation funded account directed to support the furnishing, 
fixtures, and equipment needs of the finished facilities through a capital campaign effort.  During the 
period the Library received $250,000 in proceeds from the Foundation’s FF&E capital campaign fund 
drive; while revenue into the Measure FF Fund consisted of $11,856 in interest. 
 
At the end of the first half, the Measure FF Fund expended $3,829,926, and held $7,660,665 of 
encumbrances. Major Measure FF Fund period expenditures were attributable to project management 
fees of $248,263, architectural and engineering fees of $170,025, and contractor construction costs (see 
table below) that included final close-out payments on the North and Claremont branch libraries and 
initiation of payments for West.  

Architectural design costs at December 31, 2012: 

CC 
Authorized 

Contracted 
w/ASAs Site Designer FY13-1st Half Expended to 

Date 
Expended
/CC Auth 

$751,245 $748,860 NB Architectural Resources Group $0 $728,619 97.0% 
$637,132 $627,145 CB Gould Evans Baum Thornley $22,103 $614,322 96.4% 
$893,500 $869,058 SB Field Paoli $83,863 $756,436 84.7% 
$788,194 $739,398 WB Harley Ellis Devereaux $48,740 $663,855 84.2% 

$3,070,071 $2,984,461 Total Architectural Design Services $154,706 $2,763,232 90.0% 
 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
FY13 – 1st Half Update and AAO2 Budget Amendment Page 4 

 
 
General Contractor construction costs at December 31, 2012: 

CC 
Authorized 

Contracted 
w/COs Site General Contractor (incl. 

escrow) FY13-1st Half Expended to 
Date 

Expended
/CC Auth 

$4,760,000 $4,508,765 NB BHM  *contract closed* $10,000 $4,508,765 94.5% 
$3,300,000 $2,994,394 CB Fine Line *contract closed* $260,413 $2,994,394 90.7% 
$4,963,000 $4,638,200 SB Gonsalves & Stronck $1,965,247 $2,110,809 42.5% 
$5,985,000 $5,512,531 WB West Bay Builders $942,190 $942,190 15.7% 

$19,008,000 $17,653,890 Total Construction Services $3,177,850 $10,556,158 55.5% 
 

Actual expenditures from the Foundation FF&E Fund totaled $7,183 and had an encumbered amount of 
$188,487.  Of the encumbrances, $153,000 was for self-check /AMH equipment to be placed at the 
South and West branch libraries. 

REVISIONS TO EXPENDITURE BUDGETS 

The Library requests the authorization to appropriate $575 in received gift checks to Berkeley READS 
and for library materials as requested by the gifting parties, and to accept and appropriate a California 
State Library LSTA federal pass-through grant award of $5,000 for the Berkeley Comics Arts Festival to 
be held in April/May this fiscal year. 

Fund Approved FY13 
Budget (Fund$) 

Encumbered C/O 
(revised) 

Adjustments 
(AAO1) 

Adjustments 
(AAO2) 

Revised FY13 
Budget 

Library Tax (301) $15,278,872 $141,606 $328,250  $15,748,728 

TBR (302) $76,000 $7,186   $83,186 

Grants (304)   $34,170 $40,691 $74,861 

Public Library (305) $34,930    $34,930 

Gifts (306) $128,327 $5,450 $3,970 $575 $138,322 

Fndtn FF&E (307) $1,600,000 $20,170 $150,000  $1,770,170 

Measure FF (308) $2,089,754 $11,239,045   $13,328,799 

Total $19,207,883 $11,413,457 $516,390 $41,266 $31,178,996 

 

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS EXPENSES 
 
Actual expenses in operating Funds after the first six months of the fiscal year are decidedly favorable to 
the revised budget at 42.7%.  As in the first quarter, much of the favorability is due to labor vacancy 
savings, timing of programs and major projects such as the CoB VoIP system installation and the Central 
Library boiler replacement, and ongoing overall cost saving efforts.  

 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. 1st Half-FY 2013 Revenues by Fund 
3. 1st Half-FY 2013 Expenditures by Fund 



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: 13-0## 

AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 EXPENDITURE BUDGET FOR A TOTAL FISCAL YEAR REVISED  
BUDGET OF $31,178,996 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees by approval of BOLT Resolution No.: 11-038 on May 11, 2011 
adopted the FY 2012 and FY 2013 biennial budgets; and   

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees by approval of BOLT Resolution No.: 11-045 on June 8, 2011 
adopted a revised FY 2012 and FY 2013 biennial revenue budget in response to the subsequent release of 
the San Francisco Bay Area Consumer Price Index increase of 2.8210%; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees by approval of BOLT Resolution No.: 12-039 on June 13, 2012 
adopted revised FY 2013 revenue and expenditure budgets incorporating the higher rate of the personal 
income growth rate of 3.77%; and   

WHEREAS, to appropriate encumbrances and adjustments the Board of Library Trustees by approval of BOLT 
Resolution No.: 12-057 on September 12, 2012 adopted revised FY 2013 revenue and expenditure budgets; 
and   

WHEREAS, to appropriate anticipated BALIS grant funding the Board of Library Trustees by approval of BOLT 
Resolution No.: 12-063 on October 10, 2012 authorized a revision to the FY 2013 revised Grants Funds 
expenditure budget; and   

WHEREAS, to appropriate encumbered FY 2012 VoIP system installation funding the Board of Library 
Trustees by approval of BOLT Resolution No.: 12-076 on November 14, 2012 authorized a revision to the FY 
2013 revised Library Tax Fund expenditure budget; and   

WHEREAS, to appropriate received gifts the FY 2013 revised Gifts Funds expenditure budget must be 
amended to include donations of $575; and 

WHEREAS, to accept and appropriate awarded California State Library LSTA federal pass-through grant 
funding for the Berkeley Comics Arts Festival, the FY 2013 revised Grants Funds expenditure budget must be 
increased $5,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is committed to a balanced FY 2013 Revised Budget that ensures that expenditures are 
funded from the appropriate budgeted funding group.   

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley that the FY 2013 
Expenditure Budgets are amended based upon recommended appropriation of received grant and gifts 
funding and shall total $31,178,996. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on February 13, 
2013 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  

 ___________________________________________________  
Winston Burton, Chairperson 
 
 ___________________________________________________  
Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

Attachment 1 





Attachment 2 
1st Half-FY 2013 REVENUES BY FUND 

 

 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY + CoB 

    Lib Dscr DL/ILL Grants Pub Lib Gift FF&E Mse FF 
Rfse  
Coll Revenue 

Ele/Obj Account Description 301 302 304 305 306 307 308 820 FY13 
01-01 Refund on Bills 2,000                2,000  
05-01 Over and Shorts                   
10-01 Collection by City                   
13-15 Library Tax 15,028,438                15,028,438  
20-07 Library Svc&Constr Act     34,170            34,170  
20-11 Library Fines 223,000                223,000  
20-15 Lost Book Fines 30,000                30,000  
20-17 Lib/Fin Act/S.B. 358                   
20-18 Calif Library Svcs Board                   
20-21 Tool Lending Fines 20,000                20,000  
23-12 BPL Foundation           1,500,000      1,500,000  
23-13 Friends of BPL         88,327        88,327  
30-01 Interest-Investment Pool             1,500    1,500  
50-02 Inter-Library Book Loan                   
50-03 Direct Book Loan                   
61-01 Max Rcyclng & Cmpstng                   
65-01 Meeting Room Fees 2,000                2,000  
80-99 1-Time Grant /w Proj Code                   
99-01 Appropriations Ord #1                   
99-03 Donations                   
99-99 Miscellaneous Revenue 8,500  20,000              28,500  

Adjusted Berkeley Public Library 15,313,938  20,000  34,170    88,327  1,500,000  1,500    16,957,935  

           01-01 Refund on Bills 444                444  
05-01 Over and Shorts 125                125  
10-01 Collection by City               4,735  4,735  
13-15 Library Tax 7,889,564                7,889,564  
20-07 Library Svc&Constr Act     34,170            34,170  
20-11 Library Fines 91,613                91,613  
20-15 Lost Book Fines 10,353                10,353  
20-17 Lib/Fin Act/S.B. 358                   
20-18 Calif Library Svcs Board                   
20-21 Tool Lending Fines 4,255                4,255  
23-12 BPL Foundation           250,000      250,000  
23-13 Friends of BPL                   
30-01 Interest-Investment Pool         469    11,856    12,325  
50-02 Inter-Library Book Loan                   
50-03 Direct Book Loan                   
61-01 Max Rcyclng & Cmpstng     15,000            15,000  
65-01 Meeting Room Fees                   
80-99 1-Time Grant /w Proj Code     35,691            35,691  
99-01 Appropriations Ord #1 2,267,978  199,151  (3,015) 57,393  531,885  307,694  13,726,851    17,087,937  
99-03 Donations         732        732  
99-99 Miscellaneous Revenue 14,228  10,715              24,943  

Actl+Upstd Berkeley Public Library 10,278,930  209,866  81,846  57,393  533,086  557,694  13,738,707  4,735  25,462,257  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 



 
 
 

Attachment 3 
1st Half-FY 2013 EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

 



 
 
 

Attachment 3 
1st Half-FY 2013 EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

 



 

Attachment 3 
1st Half-FY 2013 EXPENDITURES BY FUND 

  





 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 ACTION CALENDAR 
 February 13, 2013 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Dennis Dang, Administrative and Financial Services Manager 
  
SUBJECT: GREEN CLEANING POLICY 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution instituting a green cleaning policy for custodial maintenance at all library facilities. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact from this report. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council of the City of Berkeley has passed a number of resolutions promoting green practices in 
the city’s operations.  Among those resolutions are Resolution No. 62,284-N.S. dated November 18, 
2003 and Resolution No. 62,693-N.S. dated October 19, 2004, both directing the adoption of Green 
Building practices for design, construction, and operation as described in the LEED Rating System. More 
specifically, subject to certain conditions all City sponsored building projects designed and constructed 
after January 1, 2006 are assigned a minimum threshold goal of LEED “Silver.”  The Measure FF Branch 
Library Improvement Program is committed to achieving LEED “Silver” on all four branch projects; and 
has had each branch’s architectural design contract written with the attainment of the “Silver” rating as 
a project objective.   

 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

To date, the Library has received the preliminary review report for the North Branch Library’s LEED 
certification application from the Green Building Certification Institute (GBCI) – the administrator for the 
LEED certification program. In their review, under the rubric of Innovation in Design, item IDc1.2, the 
Library is notified of a “Pending” status due to the non-demonstration of a Green Cleaning Policy.  In the 
initial application submittal a narrative was provided that cited City of Berkeley ordinances, policies, and 
procedures that the Library is subject to and has integrated into its operational practices. However, the 
preliminary review states, “A Green Cleaning Policy has not been provided as required.” Achieving this 
innovation point is an important aspect of attaining LEED “Silver” for the North Branch project.  
Additionally, this innovation point will be sought for the South and West branches, so there too having 

IV Action Calendar, Item A 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Green Cleaning Policy Page 2 

 
an instituted Green Cleaning Policy would be an important component of the LEED application. 
Furthermore the board’s approval will allow the Library to extend, with more specificity, green practices 
in the performance of custodial services to the Central Library, in effect making this a system-wide 
policy. 

 

FUTURE ACTION 

Upon submittal of the Green Cleaning Policy to the Green Building Certification Institute in support of 
the LEED application for the North Branch Library the GBCI may request revisions to the policy 
document. Should revisions be requested, the Director of the Library would determine whether to 
modify the policy as may be suggested. 

 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. Green Cleaning Policy 
3. LEED 2009: IEQ Prerequisite 3: Green Cleaning Policy 
 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Resolution No.: 13-0## 

ADOPT A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A GREEN CLEANING POLICY FOR  
CUSTODIAL MAINTENANCE AT ALL LIBRARY FACILITIES 

WHEREAS, City of Berkeley Resolution No. 62,284-N.S. dated November 18, 2003 and Resolution No. 
62,693-N.S. dated October 19, 2004 direct the adoption of Green Building practices for design, 
construction, and operation as described in the LEED Rating System and state that subject to certain 
conditions all City sponsored building projects designed and constructed after January 1, 2006 are 
assigned a minimum threshold goal of LEED “Silver.”; and 

WHEREAS, the Measure FF Branch Library Improvement Program is committed to achieving LEED 
“Silver” on all four branch projects and each branch project’s architectural design contract was written 
with the attainment of the “Silver” rating as a project objective; and 

WHEREAS, the Library has received the preliminary review report for the North Branch Library’s LEED 
certification application from the Green Building Certification Institute – the administrator for the LEED 
certification program – with a notice of “Pending” for Innovation in Design, item IDc1.2 due to the non-
demonstration of a Green Cleaning Policy; and 

WHEREAS, upon submittal of the Green Cleaning Policy to the Green Building Certification Institute 
(GBCI) in support of the LEED application for the North Branch Library the GBCI may request revisions to 
the document; and 

WHEREAS, achieving this innovation point is an important aspect of attaining LEED “Silver” for the North 
Branch project and will furthermore allow the Library to extend, with more specificity, green operational 
practices in the performance of custodial services at all Library locations; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to approve 
adoption of the Green Cleaning Policy as presented to be applicable at all Library facilities and to 
authorize the Director of the Library to accept or reject suggested policy modifications as may be 
requested by the Green Building Certification Institute.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on February 
13, 2013. 

AYES: None 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 

 
  ____________________________________________  
 Winston Burton, Chairperson 
 
 
  ____________________________________________  
 Donna Corbeil, Library Director 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees

Attachment 1 



 



 
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
POLICIES 
 
 

SUBJECT: Green Cleaning Policy 

  
 

ORIGINAL DATE: 02/13/2013 
BOLT Resolution #: R13-___ 
REVISED DATE: 
PAGE: 1 

Berkeley Public Library 
GREEN CLEANING POLICY 

 
The Berkeley Public Library (BPL) is committed to providing a healthy and safe environment to the 
community, all building occupants, and building maintenance and custodial personnel at all of its 
facilities. As part of the City of Berkeley, the Library embraces its obligation pursuant to Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 12.29  “… to promote the health, safety, and general welfare for the community 
by minimizing health risks, improving air quality, protecting the quality of ground and surface water, 
minimizing consumption of resources, and minimizing the City’s contribution to global climate change by 
implementing in a phased manner, as provided in this chapter, the City’s use of a precautionary principle 
approach in its decisions.” 

It is the intent of this policy to outline specific cleaning practices to be employed at all BPL facilities that 
will ensure and maintain good indoor air quality, protect the health and comfort of all building occupants, 
maintain clean buildings, and provide a safe working environment for maintenance staff and custodial 
personnel. 

1. Cleaning Products: Cleaning products must meet the sustainability criteria as outlined in LEED EB: 
O&M IEQ Credit 3.3 as well as with the following standards:  

1.1. As adopted by City Council Resolution No. 62,693-N.S. the Environmentally Preferable 
Purchasing Policy all cleaning or disinfecting products shall at a minimum meet Green Seal 
Standards for environmental preferability and performance and shall use products with the 
lowest amount of volatile organic compounds (VOCs).  

1.2. In the event of the non-availability of Green Seal products, cleaning products must comply 
with the California Code of Regulation for maximum allowable VOC levels.  BPL will work 
with the custodial provider to determine the more environmentally preferable product in lieu 
of a conventional version of the cleaning agent. 

1.3. All cleaning products to the fullest extent practicable shall not contain, emit, or create the 
following: 

• Carcinogens and reproductive toxins 
• Persistent bioaccumulative toxicants 
• Compounds toxic to humans or aquatic life, corrosive to the skin or eyes, or that 

are skin sensitizers 
• Substances that contribute to photochemical smog, tropospheric ozone production, 

or poor indoor air quality 

1.4. All cleaning products must be approved by the BPL and the Library Building Maintenance 
Supervisor must have in his/her possession an accompanying “Material Safety Data Sheet” 
detailing a product’s chemical composition prior to any use of such product on Library 
premises. 

 

Attachment 2 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICIES Green Cleaning Policy 
 

2. Cleaning Supplies: Cleaning supplies must meet the sustainability criteria as outlined in LEED EB: 
O&M IEQ Credit 3.3 as well as with the following standards:  

2.1. Handsoaps in all restrooms may not contain antimicrobial agents, except where required by 
health codes and other regulations. 

2.2. Dispensed hand sanitizer in staff and public areas is waterless alcohol-based. 

2.3. Paper dispensers must be Library standard. 

2.4. Paper products and janitorial paper products are to be unbleached or are processed without 
chorine or chlorine derivatives, whenever possible.  

2.5. Paper towels and tissues must be 100% post consumer content. 

2.6. Toilet paper must be 100% post consumer content. 

2.7. Microfiber products must be used for dust mops, wet mops, high dusters, and hand dust cloths 
to eliminate the use of disposable and chemically treated cleaning tools. 

2.8.  U.S. EPA Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines for Janitorial Paper and Trash Can Liners. 

2.9. Janitorial paper products derived from rapidly renewable resources or made from tree-free 
fibers. 

 

3. Cleaning Equipment: Cleaning equipment must meet the sustainability criteria as outlined in LEED 
EB: O&M IEQ Credit 3.4 as well as with the following standards:  

3.1. All powered maintenance equipment including floor buffers, burnishers, and automatic 
scrubbers must be equipped with vacuums, guards and/or other devices for capturing fine 
particulates. 

3.2. All hot water extraction equipment for deep cleaning carpet must be capable of removing 
sufficient moisture such that carpets will dry in less than 24 hours. 

3.3. All floor equipment must have rubber bumpers in order to reduce damage to building surfaces. 

3.4. Equipment is ergonomically designed and takes into consideration factors such as weight, 
dimensions, and adjustability for sizing. 

3.5. The service vendor shall maintain a daily log for each BPL location providing date, personnel 
name, times, and activity items of note including use of equipment. 

 

4. Handling and Storage of Cleaning Materials: Maintenance staff and custodial personnel must 
abide with the following safety procedures: 

4.1. Only cleaning products and supplies approved by the BPL may be brought onto and used at 
Library facilities. 

4.2. Mop heads, dusting cloths, and sponges will be changed on a regular basis that shall not be 
less than once per week or whenever visible dirt or odors are present. 

4.3. Storage areas that contain cleaning products will be secured at all times. 

4.4. Containers will be securely closed when not in use and clearly labeled displaying chemical 
content. 

4.5. Custodial storage areas and closets will be kept clean and free of standing water. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICIES Green Cleaning Policy 
 

4.6. Quarterly facility inspections will be conducted by the City of Berkeley to verify compliance 
with the City’s health and safety program to identify, evaluate, and prevent occupational 
hazards or unsafe acts before they occur and result in illness or injury. 

4.7. In the event of a hazardous material emergency, including chemical spills, staff and servicing 
personnel are instructed by to immediately contact the Public Safety Dispatch desk at 981-
5900 and to implement procedures as detailed in the Library’s Employee Emergency Action 
Plan manual – response procedures are posted on staff bulletin boards and included in 
procedures manuals located at service desks. 

 

5. Hand Hygiene: The BPL encourages and promotes healthy hand hygiene practices. 

5.1. Hand sanitizer dispensers with alcohol-based waterless sanitizer are placed in staff and public 
areas and are designated with prominently placed wall signage. 

5.2. Handsoap should meet the criteria set forth in Section 2.1. 

 

6. Custodial Training: The BPL requires that its custodial service vendor  provide initial and ongoing 
training for their employees as to standard operating procedures and practices that protects the health 
and well-being of  all facility occupants and includes the following areas: 

• Safe handling, use, storage, and disposal of cleaning materials, dispensing 
equipment, and packaging 

• Ergonomic training including safe lifting practices and proper equipment handling 
• Proper mixing and dilution of concentrated chemicals 
• Effective recycling, i.e., the proper handling, sorting, and disposal of recycling, 

compost and trash 
• Hazardous and blood borne pathogens training 
• Harassment training 

 

7. Maintenance Staff Training: BPL maintenance staff receive ongoing City of Berkeley hosted 
training covering areas of: 

• Annual Designated Operator Training 
• Electrical Safety 
• Environmental Management 
• Ergonomics 
• Fire Safety 
• Hazardous Materials 
• Industrial Hygiene 
• Safety and Health 
• Treated Wood Waste 
• Universal Waste 
• Sexual Harassment 

 

8. Performance Metrics:  

8.1. Documentation of chemicals: type, volume, and concentration must be maintained in the 
Library’s maintenance facility office. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY POLICIES Green Cleaning Policy 
 

8.2. The custodial service vendor must maintain a daily documentation log of services performed. 
See Section 3.5. 

8.3. Maintenance staff will maintain a report record of completed training courses. 

8.4. Quarterly facility inspections will be conducted by the City of Berkeley to verify compliance 
with the City’s health and safety program to identify, evaluate, and prevent occupational 
hazards or unsafe acts before they occur and result in illness or injury. See Section 4.5 

 

9. Building Occupant and Custodial Feedback:  

9.1. The BPL solicits through an active write-in and electronic public comment program user 
feedback and response regarding any topic that impacts the experience in using the library. 

9.2. BPL staff is encouraged to provide their comments and evaluations either directly to Library 
management, via staff committees such as the safety committee, or for physical plant topics 
directly via email at the “Library Maintenance” address. 

 
GREEN CLEANING POLICY – GOALS 

 
Goal: Green Cleaning Policy – applicable at all open and upcoming newly constructed branch 
facilities – would be extended to the Central Library upon the expiration on June 30, 2013 of the 
existing service agreement and a new service agreement effective July 1, 2013.  The BPL contracts 
out custodial services for all of its five facilities. Currently there are two open branch facilities (North 
and Claremont), two branch facilities in construction (South and West), and the main Central Library 
facility. Upon phase-in of the Green Cleaning Policy as contained herein to be applicable to the 
Central Library the GCP will become a contractual requirement system-wide. 
 
Goal: Hand sanitizer dispensers with alcohol-based waterless sanitizer to be placed in staff and 
public areas at the North and Claremont branch libraries by December 2013, and the West and South 
Branch Libraries by June 2014. 
 
Goal: BPL in partnership with its custodial service vendor and the City of Berkeley will continue its 
efforts to identify and procure green products that exhibit lower environmental impacts than those 
currently in use at BPL facilities. 
 
Goal: BPL will install green floor mats inside and/or outside – where conditions allow – at all  
facilities to reduce contaminant load from people entering its facilities, prevent injury due to 
slippage, and to reduce exposure of building occupants to hazardous contaminants affecting indoor 
air quality, human health, and building systems and finishes. Interior mats will be of 100% recycled 
material. 

 
 
 
 Reviewed by:   
 Director of Library Services Date 

 

 Approved by:   
 Chair, Board of Library Trustees  Date 



 

 

 

Attachment 3 





 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 

 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 February 13, 2013 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 
SUBJECT: FEBRUARY 2013 MONTHLY BRANCH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT REPORT FROM THE 

DIRECTOR OF LIBRARY SERVICES 
 

INTRODUCTION 

Every month the Director of Library Services gives the Board a report on branch improvement activities 
and updates from the previous month.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

This report will have no fiscal impacts. 

 

COMMUNICATION 

Staff has added a heading, Schedule Update, to the library construction webpage and to the BLOG so 
patrons can check for updates. http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/b-
renovation.php. This is in addition to the weekly project updates which are posted for the locations 
under construction. 

The BLOG, also accessible from the Library’s website is updated regularly with pictures and project 
information, such as the narrative on our green features, for both construction projects 
at: http://www.bplbranches.blogspot.com/ 

 

PROJECT UPDATES 

South  

The Library conducted a request for Proposals (RFP) process to solicit bids for the south Branch 
furnishings, in December 2012. It recently concluded the process with the selection of three vendors to 
provide the major furnishings for the new South Branch Library. Internal planning is underway to initiate 
the transition of the temporary tool library to the new facility and for staff to move back in and set-up 
for re-opening. At present a May / June 2013 date is anticipated but no firm opening date has been set. 
LEED certification is pending. 

 

V Information Calendar, Item A 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/b-renovation.php
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/b-renovation.php
http://www.bplbranches.blogspot.com/


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
February 2013 Monthly Branch Improvement Project Report  Page 2 

 
West  

The wall framing and columns were constructed throughout December. All of the planter walls are in 
place with the concrete work complete for now. February will see the framing of the skylight structures 
and roof sheathing; exterior wall sheathing; and framing of the low and high roof, clerestory and roof 
parapets. The building is starting to take shape with the volumes and layout becoming more distinct to 
passersby. The mechanical electrical and plumbing (MEP) rough-in work will begin soon and extend 
through March.   The current anticipated Final Completion date is early autumn 2013.  
In January design documents for the replacement of the redwood tree (removed due to damage) were 
issued to the contractor. The design includes revisions to the contractual scope of work (including 
species for plants beneath the tree and irrigation). The new tree is specified as a Quercus suber 
(common name: cork oak) of a minimum height of 22 feet; a canopy spread of a minimum 14 feet; and a 
trunk diameter of a minimum 10 inches. I will continue to report on the status of this issue.  
 

North 

The branch is complete; the warranty period is in effect. The 11-month post substantial completion 
warranty walkthrough by the commissioning agents (Kitchell CEM) took place on February 5th at the 
branch.  LEED certification is pending. Bay Friendly Landscape approved signage has been designed and 
will be installed in the next month or so around the exterior of the building; the signage will note the BFL 
features that contributed to its certification. Donor signage (individual signs only) will be installed in the 
branch in the next few months. The services of Kim Urbain were secured to design and oversee the 
fabrication; staff for the Library Foundation will be assisting with the verbiage and coordinating with 
donors. The large donor sign will not be installed until the Foundation’s capital campaign is completed. 
 

Claremont  

The branch is complete; the warranty period is in effect.  The 11-month post substantial completion 
warranty walkthrough by the commissioning agents is scheduled for mid-March at the branch.  Bay 
Friendly Landscaping certification is approved and a BFL sign for the branch has been ordered; this will 
be placed in the planting area on the exterior of the library in the next month. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: None 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 February 13, 2013 
 
 
TO: Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM: Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 
SUBJECT: FEBRUARY 2013 MONTHLY REPORT FROM THE DIRECTOR OF LIBRARY SERVICES 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 

Every month the Director of Library Services gives the Board a report on Library activities and updates 
from the previous month. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

This report will have no fiscal impacts. 

 

PROGRAMS 

Exhibit at Central Library 

Berkeley-based artist Vita Wells has created a large installation of some two hundred altered books 
spanning three levels of the atrium of the Berkeley Public Library’s Central Branch, 2090 Kittredge at 
Shattuck, downtown Berkeley, that will be on display from February 11 to February 24. Ms Wells will 
discuss the art installation and her work during a FREE artist talk and on Sunday afternoon, February 
24th at 2:00pm in the Central Library’s 3rd floor Community Meeting Room.  Her installation features 
many dozens of altered, sculpted books suspended and airborne, as if flying in a spectacular natural 
formation, throughout a large portion of the Central Library building.  “This installation,” the artist says, 
“is about possibility and community across space and time, and it celebrates how public libraries enrich 
who we are as individuals and as a community.”  Wells, who has created art objects since she was old 
enough to wield an Exacto knife, makes use of the medium of printed books as the raw material of her 
art, which is powerfully evident in Flights of Mind. In response to the frequent question, “Why books?”, 
she says, “As physical objects, books are unlike any of the other material objects with which we 
surround ourselves in our day-to-day lives. They are singular in the power their mere physical presence 
possesses, the promise and possibility they embody.”  The artist lives and makes art in Berkeley.  Flights 
of Mind was created for the Berkeley Public Library Foundation’s 11th annual Authors Dinner and will 
remain on display for two weeks. Information about the artist and her work can be found 
at http://www.vitawells.net/flightsBPL.html.  

 

V Information, Item B 

http://www.vitawells.net/flightsBPL.html


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
February 2013 Monthly Report from the Director of Library Services Page 2 

 
LIBRARY DEVELOPMENT 

 
Communications Plan  
 
One of the goals of the Berkeley Public Library Board-approved Library Strategic Plan: 2011-2013 is to 
cultivate a broader base of Berkeley residents into regular library users. One of the initiatives of this goal 
is the development of a Communications Plan. The San Francisco-based public relations firm BergDavis 
Public Affairs has been engaged to assist the library with gathering valuable feedback from the 
community and stakeholders through a detailed, user-oriented survey. 
 
On January 23, 2013 the Library sent out a press release announcing the launch of a community survey 
for improved library services.  Over the next few months the Library will use the survey results to 
develop a comprehensive public information and communications program to promote the use and 
support of the Library and increase public awareness of the Library’s services, programs, special events 
and facilities. The final plan will recommend communication strategies to increase awareness of what 
the Library does and offers the community. 
 
From January 23 through February 19, 2013 we will be seeking community input on how to improve 
Library services and communications. The community is being asked to help with their feedback but 
filling out the short survey online at http://tinyurl.com/BPLCOMM; www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org or; at 
all library locations in paper format. In addition, key stakeholders and community leaders will be 
targeted via email to complete the survey. The next steps will be for the consultant to organize focus 
groups and in-depth interviews with a sampling of survey participants to gather more detailed 
information. 
 
Annual Report 
 
The Library’s Annual report for 2012 is complete. Unlike previous years, this one will be all digital and 
accessible form the library’s website. The advantages to the electronic version over paper are the green 
aspects of course but we were also able to add more pictures, create it in a format with a table of 
context and used a format that will make it easy to read.  A limited number of mail-able postcards were 
designed and printed to help us advertise the new format and announce the report is now available for 
viewing at: Explore our year in review. Go to www.tinyurl.com/BPL-report-2012 to view Berkeley Public 
Library’s user-friendly, photo-rich, all-digital Annual Report for 2012. 
 
 
OPERATIONS & FACILITIES 
 
Chancellors Grant 
 
In partnership with the University of California, Berkeley, Building Sustainability Unit, the City of 
Berkeley, Office of Energy & Sustainability Development and Stopwaste – Alameda County Waste 
Management  a pre-application form was prepared and submitted to the Chancellor’s Community 
Partnership fund for consideration. The prosed project titled: CalBlest – UC Berkeley Berkeley Library 
Environmental SustainabilityTeam, would directly benefit the Library. The proposed program seeks to 
have Cal students help implement and institutionalize sustainable practices for the Library. The initial 
phase of the project would entail a readiness assessment by students from the Building sustainability @ 
Cal program (including building audits) to determine the Library is able to achieve green certification 
with LEED Existing Building Operations and Maintenance (EBOM). Based on these findings a second 

http://tinyurl.com/BPLCOMM
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/
http://www.tinyurl.com/BPL-report-2012


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
February 2013 Monthly Report from the Director of Library Services Page 3 

 
phase to the project would ensue. The next phase would entail preparing and submitting 
documentation, as well as conducting outreach and education activities. Grant funds of $65,000 was 
requested, these would be used for student salaries and technical training, supplies, minor technical 
consulting, USGC fees, as well as education and outreach materials. 
The pre-application was submitted in October 2012, the Library and our partner s were notified on 
January 22, 2013 that we are invited to complete a full application for consideration, this is due March 5, 
2013.  
 
OTHER 
 
City Council Consent Calendar of February 5, 2013 – 
 
From: Councilmember Moore 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution supporting SCA 7 for local library funding, which enables local 
governments to pass special taxes and bonds to support the operations of their public libraries by 
lowering the voter threshold for these measures from two-thirds to 55 percent. 
Financial Implications: Unknown 
Contact: Darryl Moore, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120 

ATTACHMENTS: 

None 


	2013_02_13 BOLT Agenda v8 w_hyperlinks
	2013_01_09 BOLT Regular Minutes v2
	2013_01_09 BOLT_Minutes_Att1_Coll_Mgmt
	Blank Page

	2013_01_09 BOLT_Minutes_Att2_WB_Landscape
	Blank Page

	2013_02_13 Furniture Contract South v2
	2013_02_13 All Staff Dates 2013 correction v1
	2013_02_13 Record Retention Report v3
	2013_02_13_Record Retention_Att_2
	2013_02_13_Record Retention_Att_3
	2013_02_13_Record Retention_Att_4
	2013_02_13 Budget Report_v2
	FY 2013 is the final year of the two-year biennial budget cycle encompassing fiscal years 2012 and 2013.  This cycle’s biennial budget was adopted on May 11, 2011 by BOLT Resolution No.: R11-038.  Ahead of the start of fiscal year 2013, and although n...
	Library Tax Fund
	The Library Tax Fund includes revenue derived from the dedicated library tax, fines and fees, and miscellaneous revenue. At the end of the first half, revenues stood at $8,010,952 increasing YoY by 2.4%. This favorable variance, amounting to $184,414,...
	Total Library Tax Fund expenditures excluding encumbrances at $6,792,868 were 5.4% above the prior year period, an increase of $348,969 driven by $187,554 in labor expenditures and $161,415 in non-labor expenses.  In addition to increases in wage expe...
	Gifts Fund
	The Gifts Fund includes monies received through donations from the Berkeley Public Library Foundation, the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, the generosity of many individuals and organizations, and trusts such as the Alice Meyer Trust Fund, The...
	Period expenditures at $35,211 remained essentially unchanged from the prior year’s level, with a drop of only $459. The Friends of the Library gift funding continued to support targeted programs throughout the Library with larger expenditures occurri...
	All Other Funds
	All Other Funds is typically composed of funding from California State Library administered programs such as the Public Library Fund, the California Library Literacy Services (CLLS) program, the Library Services and Technology Act, and the Direct Book...
	All Other Funds expenditures at $23,936 represented 15.7% of the revised budget (before AAO2 acceptance of the BALIS grant). Expenses were composed of $15,429 for public-use copier rental expense, $6,820 due to TBR delivery services, and $1,687 in Ber...
	Measure FF Funds
	At the end of the first half, the Measure FF Fund expended $3,829,926, and held $7,660,665 of encumbrances. Major Measure FF Fund period expenditures were attributable to project management fees of $248,263, architectural and engineering fees of $170,...
	Actual expenditures from the Foundation FF&E Fund totaled $7,183 and had an encumbered amount of $188,487.  Of the encumbrances, $153,000 was for self-check /AMH equipment to be placed at the South and West branch libraries.
	REVISIONS TO EXPENDITURE BUDGETS
	The Library requests the authorization to appropriate $575 in received gift checks to Berkeley READS and for library materials as requested by the gifting parties, and to accept and appropriate a California State Library LSTA federal pass-through gran...
	Actual expenses in operating Funds after the first six months of the fiscal year are decidedly favorable to the revised budget at 42.7%.  As in the first quarter, much of the favorability is due to labor vacancy savings, timing of programs and major p...
	WHEREAS, to appropriate encumbered FY 2012 VoIP system installation funding the Board of Library Trustees by approval of BOLT Resolution No.: 12-076 on November 14, 2012 authorized a revision to the FY 2013 revised Library Tax Fund expenditure budget;...
	WHEREAS, to appropriate received gifts the FY 2013 revised Gifts Funds expenditure budget must be amended to include donations of $575; and
	WHEREAS, to accept and appropriate awarded California State Library LSTA federal pass-through grant funding for the Berkeley Comics Arts Festival, the FY 2013 revised Grants Funds expenditure budget must be increased $5,000; and
	WHEREAS, the Board is committed to a balanced FY 2013 Revised Budget that ensures that expenditures are funded from the appropriate budgeted funding group.

	2013_02_13 Green Cleaning Policy_v4
	2013_02_13 Branch Bond Report v2
	South
	The Library conducted a request for Proposals (RFP) process to solicit bids for the south Branch furnishings, in December 2012. It recently concluded the process with the selection of three vendors to provide the major furnishings for the new South Br...
	West

	2013_02_13 Directors report v2
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



